





shared reading books. All work was done on loose pieces of paper.
There was always a smell of waxy crayons and chalk dust per-
vading the classrooms.

There was still no washing facilities and the outside toilets froze
up in winter. There were about 40 to 45 children in each class.
Miss Hewlett entered many musical competitions with her per-
cussion band and also won prizes at the Cheltenham Festival.
Conditions in the infant school continued to deteriorate and in
1938/39 the school was closed. The building remained empty for
a number of years.

THE POST-WAR YEARS

When Mr. Godwin joined the staff in 1948, conditions had little
changed. He had a class of 52. Numbers continued to increase
as children came in from the villages. Miss Davies had 46 pupils
in her class; five of them went on to university. Iris Jones came
to teach at the school in 1954, Teachers and girls shared the same
toilets. The large gap under the door made it possible to see who
was in there!

Mr. J.R. Griffiths took on the headship of Barton Road Council
school in 1955. One of his first attacks was on the unsavoury toilet
conditions. They were moved across to the infant side. He also
managed to secure a good-sized piece of land which was tarmaced
for a playground. A Terrapin was erected at the back of the in-
fant school. This had to be hoisted over the building from Pitts
yard.

Mr. Griffiths remained the headmaster for 12 years. He always
stressed the importance of travel and groups of children were taken
to France, Belgium and Holland. He said of the school; ‘As a
school, it had no place in the modern education world, yet it served
generations of local boys and girls for 154 years.’

Barton Road Council School was officially closed on Friday,
21 July 1967. The old school was part of Tewkesbury’s history.
The old buildings stayed empty while legal difficulties were re-
solved.

In October 1968, applications were made for the use of the
building for other purposes, but the Education Committee could
do nothing. Alderman Frank Knight though it would provide
suitable accommodation for other activities and in February 1969,
the infant school building on the South side became a craft cen-
tre. The sale of the premises on the North side - the original
building - which belonged to the County Council, was on terms
to be negotiated by the county valuer.

NEW OCCUPANTS

In November 1969, the Golden Hour Club showed interest in
the property. The Tewkesbury Old Peoples’ Welfare Committee
stepped in and bought the former junior school building from
Gloucestershire County Council. The estimated cost was £3,500-
£4,500 which included conversion. In February 1970, a public
appeal was launched but it wasn’t until May 1970 that the old
school was finally purchased at a cost of £2,500 with £1,200
needed for the alterations. The existing screen was removed to
make a large room; there was also a smaller lounge and at the rear,
a kitchen and cloakroom. The members held regular whist drives
and bingo sessions in the bigger and brighter rooms. Now the
building is rented out to many different clubs and societies.
Luncheon clubs meet on Mondays and Wednesdays. A new name
had to be chosen for the old school. Elizabeth Wyatt was a
Borough Councillor and had done much in the war for P.O.Ws
through the Red Cross. Because of all her work for the town, it
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was considered appropriate to choose her name. In 1975, the Old
People’s Welfare Committee proposed to pull down the wall round
the outside yard, to make room for vehicular access. On 1 De-
cember 1981, the Lions Club helped the demolish the wall and the
cast iron gates were stored away.

Entering the Elizabeth Wyatt House today, there is still the feel
of an old school, with the narrow corridor and the line of coat-pegs
in full use. The desks have been replaced with tables and chairs.
The coke stoves no longer fill the air with stifling fumes. At the
far end of the main hall, a large clock looks down on proceedings.
This clock was made by J. Watson, whose family had a clock
business in Tewkesbury High Street. It had been made for a large
kitchen in a house in Kemerton. Mr. Gibson bought the clock with
money collected at the time of the Queen’s Coronation in 1953.
From this commanding position, it has kept time for many gen-
erations of pupils. Under the clock, there is an inscription which
gives a brief history of the school.

“This building was erected and opened as a school for the
‘education of the children of the poor’ by the British and Foreign
Bible Society in 1813. Mr. William J. Gibson, headmaster,
purchased this clock to mark the accession of Queen Elizabeth 2nd
in 1952. The Premises ceased to be used as a school in July 1967
and the clock was later presented to Elizabeth Wyatt House by Mr.
John R. Griffiths, the last headmaster of the school which had
served Tewkesbury children for 154 years.”

This simple brick building has come full circle with many ex-
pupils now using the club facilities and being a part of
Tewkesbury’s history.
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